
 
 

PROCUREMENT DEPARTMENT 
2 MONTGOMERY STREET, 3rd FLOOR 

JERSEY CITY, NJ 07302 
  

               Date:  3/4/13 
 

        ADDENDUM #1 
 
To prospective respondents on Request for Information (RFI) # 32382 for Debt Collection 
Services for E-ZPass® 

• Responses due on March 15, 2013, no later than 2:00 PM.  
 

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 
The following information is made available in response to questions submitted by prospective 
respondents to the Port Authority of New York and New Jersey (the Port Authority).  It 
addresses only those questions that the Port Authority has deemed to require additional 
information and/or clarification.  The fact that information has not been supplied with respect to 
any questions asked by a Respondent does not mean or imply anything (nor should it be deemed 
to have any meaning, construction or implication) with respect to the terms and provisions of the 
RFI, which will be construed without reference to such questions.  
 
The Port Authority makes no representations, warranties or guarantees that the information 
contained herein is accurate, complete or timely or that such information accurately represents 
the conditions that would be encountered during the performance of the a potential contract.  The 
furnishing of such information by the Port Authority shall not create or be deemed to create any 
obligation or liability upon it for any reason whatsoever and each Respondent, by submitting its 
response, expressly agrees that it has not relied upon the foregoing information, and that it shall 
not hold the Port Authority liable or responsible therefore in any manner whatsoever.  
Accordingly, nothing contained herein and no representation, statement or promise, of the Port 
Authority, its Commissioners, officers, agents, representatives, or employees, orally or in 
writing, shall impair or limit the effect of the warranties of the respondent required by this RFI 
and the Respondent agrees that it shall not hold the Port Authority liable or responsible therefore 
in any manner whatsoever. 
 
 Questions / Requests  Answers 
1. Would the use of flash drives suffice in 

place of CDs for the soft copy submission of 
RFI? 

Yes. 

2. Is this new RFI potentially intended to 
replace the procurement from 2008 which is 
expiring this year?  

The purpose of the RFI is stated in Section 5 (Page 
4) of the RFI. 

3. Provide the name of the agency or agencies Allied Interstate, Inc./iQor 
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currently performing Collection Services for 
your agency. 

4. How long has the Port Authority’s current 
Collection Agency provided collection 
services for your organization? 

Since October 2008. 

5. With regard to non-compliance, what legal 
authority does the Port Authority have to 
collect the debt? Can the Port Authority 
revoke driver's licenses or car and truck 
registrations? Can the Port Authority 
withhold the use of EZ-Pass? 

The Port Authority’s ability to collect tolls and fees 
is based upon current statutes which do not permit 
the revocation of license plates and car and truck 
registrations. 

6. What is expected on the Executive 
Summary as requested in Paragraph 7, Part 
C of the RFI. 

A high-level overview of the information provided 
in response to Section 6 (RFI Response Content) of 
the RFI. 

7. Is it mandatory to bid on this RFI to be able 
to bid on any subsequent Request for 
Proposals (RFPs)?   

No. 

8. When would any future RFP be released? The Port Authority has not made any determination 
regarding the potentiality or release of a RFP. 

9. How long is the service contract that will be 
awarded to a collection agency? 

Should the Port Authority decide to issue a RFP for 
debt collection services for E-ZPass, such 
information would be conveyed therein.  

10. Is previous toll collection a mandatory to 
respond to this RFI? If not, do all of the 
debts collected need to be outstanding for 
demonstrating past experience in the 
response to this RFI? 

There are no prerequisites to responding to the RFI.

11. Our proposed methodology in response to 
the information requested in the RFI 
contains proprietary and confidential 
elements.  Will PANYNJ allow a more 
generic response to the RFI with detailed 
discussions of our model to be 
communicated in person? 

Respondents should provide a response in 
accordance with the instructions stated in Section 7 
of the RFI. 
 
Regarding the Section entitled “Conference” 
(Section 10, pg. 6) of the RFI, it should be noted 
that the Port Authority does not guarantee an 
invitation to such individual conferences to all 
respondents to the RFI.  

12. When was the last time these services were 
out for bid, and under what RFP number? 
 
What is the projected number of accounts to 
be referred quarterly and annually? 
 
What is the projected dollar value of 
accounts to be referred quarterly and 
annually? 
 

The information requested under Item 12 is not 
necessary to respond to the information requested 
under Section 6 of the RFI. 
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What is the contingency fee rate charged by 
these agencies? 
 
What is the total dollar value of accounts 
available for placement now by category, 
including any backlog? 
 
Please provide annual number of placements 
for each of the four categories of debt. 
 
Please provide annual collection results (or 
liquidity) for each of the four categories of 
debt collection services. 
 
Please provide commission rates for each of 
the four categories of debt collection 
services. 
 
What estimated or actual dollars were paid 
last year, last month, or last quarter to any 
incumbent(s)?  
 
What is the monthly or quarterly number of 
accounts expected to be placed with the 
vendor(s) by category?  
 
What has been the historical rate of return or 
liquidation rate provided by any 
incumbent(s), and/or what is anticipated or 
expected as a result of this procurement? 
 
What is the average balance of each of the 
accounts by category? 
 
What is the balance between Personal 
and Commercial violators? Do you have any 
statistics for each? What is the balance 
between in-state and out-of state-violators? 
Do you have any statistics for each? 

 
Is the Port Authority willing to allow Firms 
to litigate the accounts? 
 
What is your level of satisfaction with your 
current Collection Service Provider? Where 
would you like to see improvement? 
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What is the total outstanding debt for both 
Unpaid Toll Violations and Revoked 
Accounts? Do you have figures for the past 
4 years? Do you anticipate these violations 
and revoked accounts increasing? 
 
What were revenues during the past 4 years?
 
Do you plan to place any secondary, 
historical placements (i.e., aged accounts 
varying from 6-12 months old)? If so, how 
many accounts will be part of this “one-
time” placement, and what is the average 
balance? 
 
What are the total volumes (total number of 
individual accounts) for both types of debt? 
 
Do you have reciprocal agreements with 
other states? With which states do you have 
reciprocal agreements? 
 
After accounts are turned over to a third-      
party collector and assuming certain 
accounts cannot be collected, what happens 
to those accounts? Are these accounts 
litigated?  
 
Do we have to pay our collectors a 
minimum hourly wage of $21.63? Please 
provide current wages by position. 
 
What is the average size of an account that 
would be placed? 
 
How many accounts were placed in 2011 
and 2012? 
 
What estimated or actual dollars were paid 
last year, last month or last quarter to the 
incumbent? 
 
What is the monthly or quarterly number of 
accounts expected to be placed with the 
Vendor by category? 
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Does the Port Authority plan on selecting 
one or more agencies for this project? 
 
How many of the violations are resold 
without penalty due to expired credit card o 
or other administrative activities where fee 
is not earned by collection agency? 
 
What is the percentage of out-of-state 
owners placed for each of the four 
categories of debt collection services? 
 
What information concerning the delinquent 
consumer is provided?  For instance, are the 
following provided: registered owner name; 
registered owner address; or registered 
owner telephone number?  Also, will this 
information be provided for out-of-state 
owners?    
                                                      
Is there a grace period pertaining to 
payments once placed with an agency? 

 
This communication should be initialed by you and annexed to your response.  In case any 
respondent fails to conform to these instructions, its response will nevertheless be construed as 
though this communication had been so physically annexed and initialed 
 
       
      THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ  
 
 
      KATHY LESLIE WHELAN, MANAGER 
      COMMODITIES AND SERVICES DIVISION 
 
 
RESPONDENT’S FIRM NAME: ____________________________________   
 
INITIALED: ____________________________________________________________  
 
DATE: _________________________________________________________________  
 
QUESTIONS CONCERNING THIS ADDENDUM MAY BE ADDRESSED TO MARGARET 
D’EMIC, WHO CAN BE REACHED AT (201)395-3410 OR mdemic@panynj.gov. 


